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Basic Sentence Patterns
Sentence Type 1  S＋Vi
S＋Vi

1. Birds fly.

2. The star was shining.

3. To be honest pays.

4. We all breathe, eat, and drink.

There＋Vi＋S
1. There entered a five-year-old boy.

2. There will be no charge for the movie.

3. There was once a great king.

4. There is a stranger to see you.=There is a stranger who wants to see you.

It＋Vi＋S
1. It matters little whether it will rain or not.=Whether it will rain or not matters little.

2. It happened/chanced that I was at home.
=I happened/chanced to be home.

3. It seems/appears that you are quite right.

S＋Vi＋Adv
1. The sun rises in the east.

2. We didn’t go anywhere last night.

3. The two boys stood side by side.

Here/There＋S＋Vi
1. Here it is.

2. Here you are.

3. There he goes.

Here/There＋Vi＋S
1. Here is your hat.

2. There goes the last train！
3. There comes the city bus！
Sentence Type 2  S＋Vi＋SC
S＋Be＋N/Adj

1. Her mother is a teacher.

2. That the earth is round is true.
3. What is the matter?
Who was absent?

S＋Be＋Adv/Prep Ph/Part

1. This watch is out of order.

2. My parents are in good health.

3. All the guests were downstairs.

4. The time is up.  The train is in.
All the lights are out.

S＋Be＋to V

1. My purpose is to pass the exam.

2. Who is to blame?
(=Who is to be blamed?)
3. To see is to believe.

It＋Be＋SC＋S（to V）
1. It is easy to learn English.

2. It is a pity not to live with him.

3. It would be wrong to consider him dishonest.

It＋Be＋SC＋S（Ving）
1. It is no use crying over spilt milk.

2. It was a difficult matter getting everything ready in an hour.

3. It is childish behaving like that.

It＋Be＋SC＋S（N Cl）
1. It is obvious that two and two make four.

2. It is a pity that you failed to come yesterday.

3. It is doubtful whether he will be present or not.

It＋Be＋SC＋S（for sb to V）
1. It is easy for her to pass the exam.

2. It is unusual for Jim to get up early.

3. It was possible for him to say that.

S＋Vi＋C（Adv）
1. The meeting lasted (for) three hours.

2. Jimmy weighs two hundred pounds.

3. The room measures five feet by four feet.

4. They have traveled hundreds of miles.

S＋Vi＋C（N/Adj）
1. He seems (to be) an honest man.

2. She seems (to be) good at doing it.

3. He appeared (to be) melancholy.

It＋Vi＋SC＋S（toV/Ving/N Cl）
1. It seems useless to study all day long without rest.

2. It seemed no good keeping on working.

3. It appears likely that it will rain tonight.

S＋Vi（Linking V）＋SC (become, feel, get, grow, sound, turn, taste…)
1. The food smells delicious.

2. Tom looks angry.

3. He remains a bachelor.

There＋Vi＋S＋Adv

1. There are three boys in the classroom.

2. There are many stores over there.

3. There are a lot of churches in Taipei.

Sentence Type 3    S＋Vt＋O
S＋Vt＋N

1. He needs your help.

2. We dug a big hole.

3. She smiled a bitter smile.

S＋Vt＋to V

1. They want to help us.

2. We refuse to accept his apology.

3. They decided not to go to Japan.

S＋Vt＋there to be＋N

1. I don’t want there to be any noise.

2. He expected there to be no trouble.

3. We like there to be a picnic soon.

S＋Vt＋O＋Part

1. He woke me up.

2. I have given my pen away.

3. Put your gloves on.

S＋Vt＋Part＋O

1. He threw away that chair he bought three years ago.

2. He has given away every penny he has.

3. Put on the most beautiful dress you have.

S＋Vt＋O＋Adv/Prep Ph

1. Bring the baby downstairs.

2. He threw the ball out of the window.

3. We visited Singapore for sightseeing.

S＋Vt＋O＋to V/Adv Cl

1. He studied his lessons to/in order to prepare for the exam.

2. They treat her as if she were a queen.

3. I found the umbrella where I left it.

S＋Vt＋N Cl

1. We believe (that) you are innocent.

2. I don’t know when he will return.

3. We wonder whether/if he will come.

S＋Vt＋so/not  So＋S＋Vt
(believe, say, see, suppose, notice)
1. (This question is easy.)
I don’t think so.

2. (A test will be held tomorrow.)
We hope/expect not.

3. (The new teacher is very strict.)
So I’ve heard.

S＋Vt＋Wh to V

1. He doesn’t know what to do.=He doesn’t know what he should do.

2. I forget how to get to his house.

3. I don’t remember when to take the exam.

S＋Vt＋Ving

1. She enjoys playing basketball.

2. Have you finished doing your exercise?

3. Helen practices playing piano every day.

S＋Vt＋to V/Ving

1. They like to swim/swimming.

2. He began to talk/talking.

3. I prefer to stay/staying at home.

4. You must continue to work/working hard.

S＋Vt＋Ving/to be Ven

1. That sentence needs explaining/to be explained.

2. What he said won’t bear repeating/to be repeated.

3. This car wants repairing/to be repaired.

S＋Vt＋O＋Prep＋N

1. Thank you for your encouragement.

2. She spent a lot of money on clothes.

3. They accused him of taking bribery.

4. We congratulated her on her achievement.

S＋Vt＋Prep sb＋O

1. We heard from Mary all about her brother’s illness.
(cf. We heard the news from Mary.)
2. I mentioned to him the issues of the meeting held the other day.

3. Don’t throw at the dog anything that might hurt him.

Sentence Type 4    S＋Vt＋IO＋DO
S＋Vt＋IO＋DO
= S＋Vt＋DO＋to＋IO
1. He lent me ten dollars.
=He lent ten dollars to me.

2. Our teacher gave us English assignments.=Our teacher gave English assignments to us.

3. He brought her much trouble.
=He brought much trouble to her.

4. Please pass me the salt and pepper.
=Please pass the salt and pepper to me.

5. I read him an English poem.
=I read an English poem to him.

S＋Vt＋IO＋DO
= S＋Vt＋DO＋for＋IO
1. Her father bought her a bicycle.
=Her father bought a bicycle for her.

2. She left him some cake.
=She left some cake for him.

3. We should choose Mother a birthday present.=We should choose a birthday present for Mother.

4. He got his son a toy train.
=He got a toy train for his son.

5. Would you cook the children some eggs?=Would you cook some eggs for the children?

S＋Vt＋IO＋DO
1. I envy you your attractive apartment.

2. Forgive us our sin.

3. That will save me lots of trouble.

4. We asked him many questions.
=We asked many questions of him.

S＋Vt＋IO＋N Cl
1. He informed me that I had to leave at once.

2. Ask her where she bought it.

3. Can you tell me why you are late?

S＋Vt＋IO＋Wh to V
1. They showed us how to do it.

2. Please tell Mary where to go.

3. Tom asked her father which to take.

S＋Vt＋to IO＋that
1. I suggested to him that he go there in no time.

2. She confessed to her mother that she had lost her purse.

3. Helen said to me that the delay was inevitable.

S＋Vt＋it＋Prep＋IO＋to V/that
1. We must leave it to your judgment to decide whether he is to blame or not.

2. A rich man takes it as a matter of course to live a luxurious life.

3. I put it to you that you go immediately.
=I suggest to you that you go immediately.

Sentence Type 5    S＋Vt＋O＋OC
S＋Vt＋O＋(to be) N/Adj
1. We believe it (to be) true.

2. They all think him (to be) a good leader.

3. We proved him (to be) a liar.

S＋Vt＋O＋to V
1. She allowed him to call on her.

2. Our boss warned us not to be late.

3. I prefer you to stay at home tonight.

S＋Vt＋O＋for/as＋N/Adj
1. They mistook her for her younger sister.

2. I regard the situation as serious.

3. They thought of him as a fool.

S＋Vt＋it＋N/Adj＋to V/that
1. I make it a rule to go for a walk every day.

2. I think it a pity that you could not come.

3. We consider it foolish to do it that way.

S＋Vt＋O＋V
1. I saw him enter the room.
=He was seen to enter the room.

2. We noticed John get nervous before the exam.=John was noticed to get nervous before the exam.

3. We felt the earth shake violently.=The earth was felt to shake violently.

S＋Vt＋O＋V
1. I had my brother fix the bicycle. 
=My brother was had to fix the bicycle by me.

2. The teacher made them recite the lesson over and over again.
=They were made to recite the lesson over and over again by the teacher.

3. Mother let us play in the park.
=We were let to play in the park by mother.

S＋Vt＋O＋Ving
1. I saw the police running after a thief.

2. They watched John cheating in the exam.

3. She felt someone’s hand pushing her.

S＋Vt＋O＋Ving
1. I don’t want to keep them waiting outside.

2. The police caught him stealing.

3. We found them playing in the garden.

S＋Vt＋O＋Ving
1. I can’t have you beating him.
(=I can’t allow you to beat him.)
2. The actor had the audience laughing.
(=The actor made the audience laugh.)
S＋Vt＋O＋Adj
1. Try to make yourself comfortable.

2. The sun keeps us warm.

3. We tried to push the door open.

S＋Vt＋O＋N/N Cl
1. They chose him class leader.

2. They elected Bush president.

3. Her parents make her what she is today.

S＋Vt＋O＋Ven
1. You must have/get your hair cut.

2. We found the watch stolen.

3. I want the work finished soon.

4. I haven’t heard this opera sung in French.

5. She suddenly heard her name called.

Verb Tenses

Simple Present

1. Water consists of hydrogen and oxygen.

2. I study for two hours every night.

3. I have only a dollar right now.

Present Progressive

1. John is sleeping right now.

2. I need an umbrella because it is raining.

3. He is trying to improve his work habits.

Practice

(Simple Present or Present Progressive)

1. Tom can’t come to the phone because he is washing (wash) his hair.

2. Diane washes(wash) her hair every other day.

3. Please be quiet. I am trying(try) to concentrate.

4. After three days of rain, I’m glad that the sun is shining(shine) again today.

5. Every morning, the sun shines(shine) in my bedroom window and wakes(wake) me up.

6. Mike is a student, but he isn’t going(go, not) to school right now because it’s summer. He attends (attend) college from September to May every year, but in the summers he usually has(have, usually) a job at the post office. In fact, he is working(work) there this summer.

Nonprogressive Verbs

	know  realize  understand  recognize  believe  feel  suppose  think*  imagine  doubt  remember  forget  want  need  prefer  mean

	love  like  appreciate  hate  dislike  fear  envy mind  care

	possess  have*  own  belong

	taste*  hear  see*  smell*  feel*

	seem  look*  appear*  cost  owe  weigh*  be*  exist  consist of  contain  include


	I think he is a kind man.
	I am thinking about this grammar.

	He has a car.
	I am having trouble.

	This food tastes good.
	The chef is tasting the sauce.

	These flowers smell good.
	Don is smelling the roses.

	I see a butterfly. Do you see it?
	The doctor is seeing a patient.

	The cat’s fur feels soft.
	Sue is feeling the cat’s fur.

	She looks cold. I’ll lend her my coat.
	I am looking out the window.

	He appears to be asleep.
	The actor is appearing on the stage.

	A piano is heavy. It weighs a lot.
	The grocer is weighing the banana.

	I am hungry.
	Tom is being foolish.


Practice  (Simple Present or Present Progressive)
1. Right now I am looking(look) around the classroom. Yoko is writing(write) in her book. Carlos is biting (bite) his pencil. Tom is scratching(scratch) his head. Mary is staring(stare) out the window. She seems (seem) to be daydreaming, but perhaps she is thinking(think) hard about verb tenses. What do you think(think, you) Mary is doing(do)?

2. Right now I am looking(look) at Helen. She looks (look) angry. I wonder what’s the matter. She has (have) a frown on her face. She certainly isn’t having (have, not) any fun right now.

3. A: Who is that woman who is standing(stand) next to the window?

B: Which woman? Are you talking(Talk, you) about the woman who is wearing(wear) the blue dress?

A: No, I am not talking(talk, not) about her. I mean (mean) the woman who is wearing(wear) the blue suit.

B: Oh. I don’t know(know, not). I don’t recognize (recognize, not) her.

Simple Past

1. I bought a new watch three days ago.

2. He lived in Paris for ten years, but now he is living in Rome.

3. I stood under a tree when it began to rain.

Past Progressive
1. I was standing under a tree when it began to rain.

2. At eight o’clock last night, I was studying.

3. While I was studying in my room, my sister was watching TV in the living room.

Practice

(Simple Past or Past Progressive)

1. I called(call) Roger at nine last night, but he wasn’t (be, not) at home. He was studying(study) at the library.

2. I didn’t hear(hear, not) the thunder during the storm last night because I was sleeping(sleep).

3. My brother and sister were arguing(argue) about something when I walked(walk) into the room.

4. A: How did you break(break, you) your arm?

B: I slipped(slip) on the ice while I was crossing (cross) the street in front of the dorm.

5. It was my first day of class. I finally found(find, finally) the right room. The room was already(be, already) full of students. On one side of the room, students were talking busily(talk, busily) to each other in Spanish. Other students were speaking (speak) Japanese, and some were conversing (converse) in Arabic. It sounded like the United Nations. Some of the students, however, were just sitting(sit, just) quietly by themselves. I chose (choose) an empty seat in the last row and sat(sit) down. In a few minutes, the teacher walked(walk) into the room and all the multilingual conversation stopped(stop).

Present Perfect

1. I have already seen that movie.

2. I have met many people since I came here in June.

3. I have been here since seven o’clock.

4. I have known him for many years.

Practice

(Simple Past or Present Perfect)

1. So far the week, I have had(have) three tests.

2. What have you learned(learn, you) since you came (come) here? How many new friends have you made(make, you)? I hope you have already met (meet, already) a lot of interesting people.

3. Libraries today are different from those in the 1800s. For example, the contents of libraries have changed(change) greatly through the years. In the 1800s, libraries were(be) simply collections of books. However, today most libraries have become (become) multimedia centers that contain tapes, computers, disks, films, magazines, music, and paintings. The role of the library in society has also changed(change, also). In the 1800s, libraries were (be) open only to certain people, such as scholars or the wealthy. Today Libraries serve everyone.

Present Perfect Progressive

1. I have been sitting here since seven o’clock/for two hours.

2. It has been raining all day. It is still raining right now.

3. My back hurts, so I have been sleeping on the floor lately. The bed is too soft.

4. I have lived/have been living here since 1985.

5. He has worked/has been working at the same store for ten years.

Practice

(Present Perfect or Present Perfect Progressive)

1. It has been snowing(snow) all day. I wonder when it will stop.

2. I have written(write) them three times, but I still haven’t received a reply.

3. I have lived/have been living(live) here since last March.

4. The telephone has rung(ring) four times in the last hour, and each time it has been for my roommate.

5. The telephone has been ringing(ring) for almost a minute. Why doesn’t someone answer it?

6. A: Have you been(Be, you) able to reach Bob on the phone yet?

B: Not yet. I have been trying (try) for the last twenty minutes, but the line has been(be) busy.

7. A: Dr. Jones is a good teacher. How long has he been(be, he) at the university?

B: He has taught/has been teaching(teach) here for twenty years.

Past Perfect
1. My parents had already eaten by the time I got home.

2. Sam had already left when we got there.

3. After the guest had left/left, I went to bed.

4. My parents had slept/slept before I got home.

Practice

(Simple Past or Past Perfect)

1. When I first traveled(travel) abroad to study, I had never lived(live, never) in a dormitory before. During the first year, I had(have) a roommate from Switzerland who became(become) a very good friend. Prior to that time, I had never lived(live, never) with anyone from another culture.

2. In 1955, my parents emigrated(emigrate) to the United States from Turkey. They had never traveled (travel, never) outside of Turkey and were(be), of course, excited by the challenge of relocating in a foreign country. Eventually, they settled(settle) in California. My sister and I were(be) born there and grew(grow) up there. Last year, I went(go) to visit Turkey to visit my relatives. I had always wanted (want, always) to visit Turkey and learn more about my own family background. My dream was finally realized.

Past Perfect Progressive
1. The police had been looking for the criminal for two years before they caught him.

2. He finally came at six o’clock. I had been waiting for him since four-thirty.

3. When Judy got home, her hair was still wet because she had been swimming.

4. Her eyes were red because she had been crying.

Practice

(Present or Past Perfect Progressive)

1. Wake up! You have been sleeping(sleep) long enough. It’s time to get up.

2. We had been waiting(wait) for Nancy for over three hours before she finally arrived yesterday.

3. Tom had a hard time finding a job. He had been trying(try) to get a new job for six months before he finally found a position at a local community college. Now he has a two-year contract. He has been teaching(teach) there for only a few weeks, but he likes his new job very much.

4. The marathon runner had been running(run) for almost two hours when she collapsed to the pavement. She received immediate medical attention.

Simple Future

Prediction:

1. He will/is going to finish his work tomorrow.

2. According to the weather report, it will/is going to be cloudy tomorrow.

A prior plan:

3. A: Why did you buy this paint?    B: I am going to paint my bedroom tomorrow.

4. I talked to Bob yesterday. He is tired of taking the bus to work. He is going to buy a car. That’s what he told me.

Willingness:

5. A: The phone is ringing.

  B: I will get it.

6. A: I don’t understand this problem.

  B: Ask your teacher about it. She will help you.

Practice  (will or be going to)

1. A: Do you want to go shopping with me? I am going to go(go) to the shopping mall downtown.

  B: Sure. What time do you want to leave?

2. A: It’s cold in here.

  B: I agree. I will turn(turn) the heater on.

  A: That’s a good idea.

3. A: Oh, oh! I’ve spilled coffee on my shirt.

B: Just a minute. I will get(get) a damp cloth for you.
4. A: What do you want to be when you grow up?

  B: I am going to be(be) an astronaut.

  A: Good for you!

5. Fred will/is going to be(be) at the meeting tomorrow. I think Jane will/is going to come(come) too.

Future In Time Clauses

1. Bob will come soon. When Bob comes, we will see him.

2. Linda is going to leave soon. Before she leaves, she is going to finish her work.

3. They are going to come soon. I will wait here until they come.

Practice  (will/be going to or Simple Present)

1. I’m going to watch a TV program at nine. Before I watch(watch) that program, I will/am going to write(write) a letter to my parents.

2. Gary will come soon. I will/am going to wait(wait) here until he comes(come).

3. A: How long will you/are you going to stay(stay, you) in this country?

  B: I plan(plan) to be here for about one more year. I hope(hope) to graduate a year from this June.

  A: What will you/are you going to do(do, you) after you leave(leave)?

  B: I will/am going to return(return) home and get(get) a job. How about you?

  A: I will/am going to be(be) here for at least two more years before I return(return) home and get(get) a job.

Present Progressive/Simple Present For Future Time

1. Helen has an appointment with a doctor. She is seeing Dr. North next Tuesday.

2. Sam has already made his plans. He is leaving at noon tomorrow.

3. The museum opens at ten tomorrow morning.

4. John’s plane arrives at six P.M. next Monday.

Future Progressive

1. (I will begin to study at 7. You will come at 8.)
I will be studying when you come.

2. Right now I am sitting in class. At this same time tomorrow, I will be sitting in class.

3. Don’t call me at nine because I won’t be home. I am going to be studying at the library.

Practice  (Simple Present or Future Progressive)

1. Tomorrow I’m going to leave for home. When I arrive(arrive) at the airport, my whole family will be waiting(wait) for me.

2. When I get(get) up tomorrow morning, the sun will be shining(shine), the bird will be singing(sing), and my roommate will still be lying(lie, still) in bed fast asleep.

3. A: When do you leave for Florida?

  B: Tomorrow. Just think. Two days from now I will be lying(lie) on the beach in the sun.

  A: Sounds great! I will be thinking(think) about you.

4. Look at those dark clouds. When class is(be) over, it will probably be raining(rain, probably).

Future Perfect
1. (I will graduate in June. I will see you in July.)
By the next time I see you, I will have graduated.

2. I will have finished my homework by the time I go out on a date tonight.

Future Perfect Progressive
1. (I will go to bed at ten P.M. He will get home at midnight. At midnight I will be sleeping.)
I will have been sleeping for two hours by the time he gets home.

2. When Professor Jones retires next month, he will have taught/will have been teaching for 45 years.

Practice

1. Ann and Andy got married on June 1st. Today is June 14th. Ann and Andy have been(be) married for two weeks. By June 7th, they had been(be) married for one week. By June 28th, they will have been(be) married for four weeks.

2. Go ahead and leave on your vacation. Don’t worry about this work. By the time you get(get) back, we will have taken(take) care of everything.

3. I’m getting tired of sitting in the car. Do you realize that by the time we arrive(arrive) in Phoenix, we will have been driving(drive) for twenty straight hours?

4. What? He got married again? At this rate, he will have had(have) a dozen wives by the time he dies(die).

5. This morning I came(come) to class at 9:00. Right now it is(be) 10:00, and I am(be) still in class. I have been sitting(sit) at this desk for an hour. By 9:30, I had been sitting(sit) here for half an hour. By 11:00, I will have been sitting(sit) here for two hours.

The Passive

Forming the Passive

1. Engineers design bridges. (simple present)

=Bridges are designed by engineers.

2. Ann is sending the letters. (present progressive)

 =The letters are being sent by Ann.

3. The judges have made a decision. (present perfect)

 =A decision has been made by the judges.

4. Several people saw the accident. (simple past)

 =The accident was seen by several people.

5. A guard was protecting the jewels. (past progressive)
 =The jewels were being protected by a guard.

6. The medicine had cured my illness. (past perfect)

 =My illness had been cured by the medicine.

7. Fred will plan the party. (simple future)

 =The party will be planned by Fred.

8. The city is going to build a bridge.

 =A bridge is going to be built by the city.

9. The cat will have caught the mouse. (future perfect)

 =The mouse will have been caught by the cat.

Using the Passive
1. Rice is grown(grow) in India.

2. Our house was built(build) in 1890.

3. The olive oil was imported(import) from Spain.

4. Life on the Mississippi was written(write) by Mark Twain.

5. This rug was made(make) by my aunt.
That rug was made(make) by my mother.

Practice

1. They are fixing my car today.

(My car is being fixed today.

2. They speak French in Quebec.

(French is spoken in Quebec.

3. Very few people watch that TV show.

(That TV show is watched by very few people.

4. Did Edison invent the telephone?

(Was the telephone invented by Edison?

5. Someone cut down that tree last week.

(That tree was cut down last week.

Indirect Objects as Passive Subjects

Someone handed Ann a menu at the restaurant.

(Ann was handed a menu at the restaurant.

Direct Objects as Passive Subjects

  Someone handed a menu to Ann at the restaurant.

(A menu was handed to Ann at the restaurant.

Practice
1. Someone has offered Mike the opportunity to study abroad.

(Mike has been offered the opportunity to study abroad.

(The opportunity has been offered to Mike to study abroad.

2. People do not pay babysitters a lot of money.

(Babysitters are not paid a lot of money.

(A lot of money is not paid to babysitters.

Practice

1. Soon after I applied(apply) for a job with the United Nations two years ago, I was hired(hire).

2. A: Where did you buy(buy, you) that watch?

  B: I didn’t buy(buy, not) it. It was given(give) to me for my birthday.

3. Bananas originated in Asia. They were introduced (introduce) to the Americas in 1516. Until the 1860s, bananas were eaten(eat) principally by people of the tropics. Today, bananas are exported (export) to all parts of the world, and they are enjoyed(enjoy) by people who live in all climates.

4. Yesterday we went to look at an apartment. I really liked it, but by the time we got there, it had already been rented(rent, already).

Passive Modals

1. James should be told(should, tell) the news as soon as possible.

2. James should have been told(should, tell) the news a long time ago.

3. Meat must be kept(must, keep) in a refrigerator or it will spoil.

4. This house must have been built(must, build) over 200 years ago.

5. We tried, but the window couldn’t be opened(can’t,  open).

6. Good news! I may be offered(may, offer) a job soon.

7. Andy, your chores had better be finished(had better, finish) by the time I get home.

8. This application is supposed to be sent(be supposed to, send) to the personnel department soon.

9. These books have to be returned(have to, return) to the library by tomorrow.

Stative Passive

1. (The door was locked by me five minutes ago.)
Now the door is locked.

2. (The window was broken by Ann.)
Now the window is broken.

3. I am interested in Chinese art.

4. He is satisfied with his job.

5. Ann is married to Alex.

6. I don’t know where I am. I am lost.

7. I can’t find my purse. It is gone.

8. I am finished/done with my work.

Practice
1. (compose) Water is composed of hydrogen and oxygen.

2. (accustom) I am accustomed to living here.

3. (oppose) I am opposed to that suggestion.

4. (cover) It’s winter, and the ground is covered with snow.

5. (divorce) Helen is divorced from Tom.

6. (relate) His name is John Smith. He is related to Mary Smith.

7. (disappoint) Jim got a bad grade because he didn’t study. He is disappointed with/in himself.

8. (scare) Bobby is not very brave. He is scared of his own shadow.

9. (devote) Mr. and Mrs. Miller are devoted to each other.

10. (do) We are done with this exercise.

11. (acquaint) I am acquainted with that man.

12. (addict) A person who is addicted to drugs needs professional medical help.

13. (know) Mark Twain is known for his stories about life on the Mississippi.

14. (equip) My car is equipped with air conditioning and a sun roof.

15. (convince) The boss is convinced of Jean’s ability.

The Passive with Get
1. I stopped working because I got tired.

2. They are getting married next month.

3. I got worried because he was two hours late.

Practice

1. (hurt) There was an accident, but nobody got hurt.

2. (lose) We didn’t have a map, so we got lost.

3. (dress) We can leave as soon as you get dressed.

4. (confuse) I got confused because everybody gave me different advice.

5. (depress) Chris got depressed when she lost her job, so I tried to cheer her up.

6. (invite) She got invited to the party?

7. (pay) I get paid on Fridays. I’ll give you the money I owe you next Friday. Okay?

8. (hire) After Ed graduated, he got hired by an engineering firm.

9. (fire) But later he got fired because he didn’t do his work.

10. (pack) I’ll be ready to leave as soon as I get packed.

Participial Adjectives
1. (The problem confuses the students.)
It is a confusing problem.

2. (The students are confused by the problem.
They are confused students.

3. (The story amuses the children.)
It is an amusing story.

4. (The children are amused by the story.)
They are amused children.

Practice

1. The stolen(steal) jewelry was recovered.

2. Success in one’s work is a satisfying(satisfy) experience.

3. The terrified(terrify) villagers ran for their lives.

4. I found myself in an embarrassing(embarrass) situation last night.

5. A damaging(damage) earthquake occurred recently.

6. People are still in the process of repairing the many damaged(damage) buildings and streets.

7. I elbowed my way through the crowded(crowd) room.

8. No one lives in that deserted(desert) house except a few ghosts.

9. I bought some frozen(freeze) vegetables at the supermarket.

10. The injured(injure) woman was put into an ambulance.

11. Use the given(give) words in the following(follow) sentence.

12. A growing(grow) child needs a balanced(balance) diet.

13. I still have five more required(require) courses to take.

14. There is an old saying: Let sleeping(sleep) dogs lie.

15. The abandoned(abandon) car was towed away by a tow truck.

Conditional Sentences

True in the Present or Future

1. If I don’t eat breakfast, I always get hungry during class.

2. Water freezes/will freeze if the temperature goes below 32(F/0(C.

3. If the weather is nice tomorrow, we will go on a picnic.

Untrue in the Present

1. If I taught this class, I wouldn’t give tests.

2. If he were here right now, he would help us.

3. If I were you, I would accept their invitation.

Untrue in the Past

1. If you had told me about the problem, I would have helped you.

2. If they had studied, they would have passed the exam.

3. If I hadn’t slipped on the ice, I wouldn’t have broken my arm.

Practice

1. It’s too bad Helen isn’t here. If she were(be) here, she would know(know) what to do.

2. Fred failed the test because he didn’t study. However, if he had studied(study) for the test, he would have passed(pass) it.

3. You should tell your father exactly what happened. If I were(be) you, I would tell(tell) him the truth as soon as possible.

4. If I had had(have) my camera with me yesterday, I would have taken(take) a picture of Alex standing on his head.

5. Sally always answers(answer) the phone if she is(be) in her office.

6. I will make(make) a tomato salad for the picnic tomorrow if the tomatoes in my garden are(be) ripe.

7. I got wet because I didn’t take my umbrella. However, I would not have got(get, not) wet if I had remembered(remember) to take my umbrella with me yesterday.

8. I would change(change) the present economic policy if I were(be) the President of the United States.

9. If the teacher is(be) absent tomorrow, class will be(be) cancelled.

Using Progressive

1. If it were not raining right now, I would go for a walk.
(It is raining right now, so I will not go for a walk.)

2. If it had not been raining yesterday afternoon, I would have gone for a walk.
(It was raining yesterday afternoon, so I did not go for a walk.)

Mixed Time

1. If he were a good student, he would have studied for the test yesterday.
(He is not a good student. He did not study for the test yesterday.)

2. If I had eaten breakfast several hours ago, I would not be hungry now.
(I did not eat breakfast several hours ago, so I am hungry now.)

Practice
1. Bob left his wallet at home this morning, and now he doesn’t have any money for lunch.

(If Bob had not left his wallet at home this morning, he would have some money for lunch now.

2. Carol didn’t answer the phone because she was studying.

(Carol would have answered the phone if she had not been studying.

3. Every muscle in my body aches today because I played basketball for three hours last night.

(Every muscle in my body would not ache if I had not played basketball for three hours last night.

4. Barry stops to shake everyone’s hand because he’s running for political office.

(Barry would not stop to shake everyone’s hand if he were not running for political office.

5. I feel better now because you talked to me about my problems last night.

(I wouldn’t feel better now if you hadn’t talked to me about my problem last night.

Using Should

1. If John should call, tell him I’ll be back around five.

2. If it should rain tomorrow, the picnic will be cancelled.

Using Were To

1. If the sun were to rise in the west, I would change my mind.

2. If I were to live to be 150 years old, I still could not read all books.
Omitting If

1. Were I you, I wouldn’t do that.

2. Had I known, I would have told you.

3. Should anyone call, please take a message.

Practice

1. Were he a millionaire, he would help those poor people.

2. Should he come tomorrow, give him the message.

3. Had you used a computer, you could have finished the work in half the time.

4. If the sun were to rise in the west, I would tell you the secret.
Implied Conditions

1. I would have answered the phone, but I didn’t hear it ring.

(I would have answered the phone if I had heard it ring.

2. I couldn’t have finished the work without your help.

(I couldn’t have finished the work if you hadn’t helped me.

3. I would have gone to Nepal last summer, but I didn’t have enough money.

(I would have gone to Nepal last summer if I had had enough money.

Using Wish
Future:

1. She will not tell me.

(I wish she would tell me.

2. He isn’t going to be here.

(I wish he were going to be here.

3. She can’t come tomorrow.

(I wish she could come tomorrow.

Present:

1. I don’t know French.

(I wish I knew French.

2. It is raining right now.

(I wish it weren’t raining right now.

3. I can’t speak Japanese.

(I wish I could speak Japanese.

Past:

1. John didn’t come.

(I wish John had come.

2. Mary couldn’t come.

(I wish Mary could have come.

Using Would to make wishes about the Future
1. It is raining. I wish it would stop(stop).

2. We’re going to be late. I wish you would hurry(hurry).

3. He needs some money. He wishes his parents would send(send) him some.

4. My roommate is very messy. I wish she would pick(pick) up after herself more often.

Practice

1. We need some help. I wish Tom were(be) here now. If he were(be), we could finish this work very quickly.

2. We had a good time in Houston over vacation. I wish you had come(come) with us. If you had come(come) with us, you would have had(have) a good time.

3. I wish it were not(be, not) so cold today. If it weren’t(be, not) so cold, I would go(go) swimming.

4. A: I wish you would hurry(hurry)! We’re going to be late.

  B: I wish you would relax(relax). We’ve got plenty of time.

5. A: I wish we didn’t have(have, not) to go to class today.

  B: So do I. I wish it were(be) a holiday.

6. A: My daughter wishes she weren’t(be, not) so tall and wishes her hair were(be) black and straight.

  B: Really? My daughter wishes she were(be) taller and that her hair were(be) blond and curly.

7. A: It’s raining. I wish it would stop(stop).

  B: Me too. I wish the sun were shining(shine) so that we could go(go) swimming.

Using As If/As Though
1. (He is not a child.)
He talks as if he were a child.

2. (She didn’t take a shower with her clothes on.)
When she came in from the rainstorm, she looked as if she had taken a shower with her clothes on.

3. (He has met her.)
He acted as though he had never met her.

4. (She will be here.)
She spoke as if she wouldn’t be here.

Practice

1. They treat their dog as if it were a child. (The dog isn’t a child.)

2. She went right on talking as though she hadn’t heard a word I’d said. (She heard everything I said.)

3. You look so depressed. You look as if you didn’t have a friend in the world. (You have many friends.)

4. It was so quiet that it seemed as if the earth had stopped. (The earth didn’t stop.)

5. I turned, and there she was. It was as though she had appeared out of nowhere. (She didn’t appear out of nowhere.)
Modal Auxiliaries
Polite Requests

1. May I (please) borrow your pen?

2. Could I borrow your pen (please)?

3. Can I borrow your pen?
(Yes, certainly. / Certainly. / Yes, of course. / Of course. / Sure. / “Uh-huh”)

4. Would you pass the salt (please)?

5. Will you (please) pass the salt?

6. Could you pass the salt?

7. Can you pass the salt?
(Yes, I’d be happy to. / Yes, I’d be glad to. / Certainly. / Sure.)

Would You Mind

1. Would you mind if I closed the window?

2. Would you mind if I used the phone?
(No. Not at all. / No, of course not. / No, that would be fine. / “Unh-unh”)

3. Would you mind closing the window?

4. Excuse me? Would you mind repeating that?
(No. I’d be glad to. / Not at all. I’d be glad to.)

Practice

1. I’m getting tired. I’d like to go home. Would you mind if I left(leave) early?

2. A: Are you going to the post office?

  B: Yes.

  A: Would you mind mailing(mail) this letter for me?

  B: Not at all.

3. A: Are you coming with us?

  B: I’m not feeling very good. Would you mind if I stayed(stay) home?

  A: Of course not.

4. A: It’s getting hot in here. Would you mind if I opened/opening(open) the window?

  B: No.

5. A: I don’t like this TV program. Would you mind if I changed/changing(change) the channel?

  B: Unh-unh.

Expressing Necessity

1. All applicants must/have to take an entrance exam.

2. I’m looking for Sue. I have to talk to her about our lunch date tomorrow. I can’t meet her for lunch because I have to go to a business meeting at 1:00.

3. Where’s Sue? I must talk to her right away. I have an urgent message for her.

4. I have got to/have to go now. I have a class in ten minutes.

5. I had to study last night.

Lack of Necessity and Prohibition

1. Tomorrow is a holiday. We don’t have to go to class.

2. I can hear you. You don’t have to shout.

3. You needn’t worry. (BrE)

4. You must not look in the closet. Your birthday present is hidden there.

5. You must not tell anyone my secret. Do you promise?

Practice (any form of Have To or Must Not)

1. Last night Jack had to go to a meeting. Did you have to(You) go to the meeting last night too?

2. You don’t have to introduce me to Dr. Gray. We’ve already met.

3. In order to be a good salesclerk, you must not be rude to a customer.

4. Matt is nearsighted. He has had to wear glasses ever since he was ten years old.

5. By the time this week is finished, I will have had to take eight examinations in five days. The life of a student isn’t easy!

6. I don’t have to go to the doctor. I’m feeling much better.

7. Johnny! You must not play with sharp knives.

8. This is an opportunity that comes once in a lifetime. We must not let it pass.

9. A person doesn’t have to become rich and famous in order to live a successful life.

Advisability

1. You should/ought to study harder.

2. Drivers should/ought to obey the speed limit.

3. You shouldn’t/ought not to leave your keys in the car.

4. You had better take care of that cut on your hand soon, or it will get infected.

Practice (Should or Must/Have To)

1. A person must/have to eat in order to live.

2. A person should eat a balanced diet.

3. We should go to Hawaii for our vacation.

4. If you want to become a doctor, you must/have to go to medical school for many years.

5. If you don’t know how to spell a word, you should look it up in the dictionary.

The Past Form of Should

Tom didn’t study for the test. During the exam he panicked and started looking at other students’ test papers. 

1. Tom should have studied for the test.

2. He shouldn’t have panicked during the test.

3. He shouldn’t have started cheating.

Expectations

1. The game is supposed to begin at 10:00.
(is expected to)

2. Sugar is supposed to be bad for your teeth.
(it is generally believed)

3. The committee is to meet tomorrow.

4. You are not to eat or drink in this room.

5. I should go to the meeting.
I am supposed to go to the meeting.

6. I must be at the meeting.
I am to be at the meeting.

Practice

1. You are not supposed to(suppose, not) open that door.

2. I have a meeting at seven tonight. I am supposed to(suppose) be there a little early to discuss the agenda.

3. You are not to(be, not) smoke.

4. You are to(be) keep off the grass.

Making Suggestions

1. Let’s not go to a movie. Let’s stay home instead.

2. Why don’t we go to a movie? (=Let’s go to a movie.)

3. Why don’t you give Mary a call?

4. Shall I open the window? Is that okay with you?

5. Let’s go, shall we?

6. A: I’m having trouble in math class.

  B: You could talk to your teacher. Or you could ask Ann to help you with your math lessons. Or I could try to help you.

7. A: I failed my math class.

  B: You could have talked to your teacher. Or you could have asked Ann to help you with your math. Or I could have tried to help you.

Degrees of Certainty
Present Time:

Why isn’t John in class?

1. He is sick. (100%)

2. He must be sick. (95%)

3. He may/might/could be sick. ((50%)

Practice (Must or May/Might/Could)

1. A: Hello. May I speak to Ron?

  B: I’m sorry. You must have the wrong number. There’s no one here by that name.

2. A: Where’s Ms. Adams? She’s not in her office.

  B: I don’t know. She may/might/could be at the meeting.

  A: If you see her, would you tell her I’m looking for her?

  B: Certainly, Mr. French.

Present Time Negative:

1. Sam isn’t hungry. (100%)

2. Sam couldn’t/can’t be hungry. (99%)

3. Sam must not be hungry. (95%)

4. Sam may/might not be hungry. ((50%)

Past Time:

Why wasn’t Mary in class?

1. She was sick. (100%)

2. She must have been sick. (95%)

3. She may/might/could have been sick. ((50%)

Past Time Negative:

1. Sam wasn’t hungry. (100%)

2. Sam couldn’t/can’t have been hungry. (99%)

3. Sam must not have been hungry. (95%)

4. Sam may/might not have been hungry.

Practice (any form of Must)

1. A: Paula fell asleep in class this morning.

  B: She must have stayed up(stay up) too late last night.

2. A: Jim is eating everything in the salad but the onions. He’s pushed all of the onions over to the side of his plate with his fork.

  B: He must not like(like) onions.

3. A: What time is it?

  B: Well, we came at seven, and I’m sure we’ve been here for at least an hour. So it must be(be) around eight o’clock.

Future Time:

1. Kay will do well on the test. (100%)

2. She should/ought to do well on the test. (90%)

3. She may/might/could do well on the test. ((50%)

Practice (Will or Should or Must)

1. Look at all the people standing in line to get into that movie. It must be(be) a good movie.

2. A: It’s very important for you to be there on time.

  B: I will be(be) there at seven o’clock. I promise.

3. A: Who do you think is going to win the game tomorrow?

  B: Well, our team has better players, so we should win(win), but you never know. Anything can happen in sports.

4. I thought I had a dollar in my wallet, but I don’t. I must have spent(spend) it.

5. I wonder what’s causing the delay. Ellen’s plane should have been(be) here an hour ago.

Progressive Forms of Modals
1. Let’s just knock on the door lightly. Tom may be sleeping.

2. All of the lights in Ann’s room are turned off. She must be sleeping.

3. Sue wasn’t at home last night when we went to visit her. She might have been studying at the library.

4. Al wasn’t at home last night. He has a lot of exams coming up soon, and he is also working on a term paper. He must have been studying at the library.

Practice (Must or Should or May + Progressive)

1. Look. Those people who are coming in the door are carrying wet umbrellas. It must be raining(rain).

2. A: Why is Margaret in her room?

  B: I don’t know. She may be doing(do) her homework.

3. A: What are you doing?

  B: I’m writing a letter to a friend, but I should be studying(study). I have a teat tomorrow.

4. A: Did Ed mean what he said about Andy yesterday?

  B: I don’t know. He may have been kidding(kid) when he said that, but who knows?

5. A: Did Ed really mean what he said yesterday?

  B: No, I don’t think so. I think he must have been kidding(kid).

Using Be Used To and Used To and Would
1. Mary is used to/is accustomed to cold weather.

2. Bob moved to Alaska. After a while he got used to/got accustomed to living in a cold climate.

3. Jack used to live in Chicago. (situation)

4. He used to be a Boy Scout. (situation)

5. They use to have a Ford. (situation)

6. When I was a child, my father used to/would read me a story at night before bed. (action)

Practice (Be Used To or Used To)

1. Jane used to work(work) for the telephone company, but now she has a job at the post office.

2. This work doesn’t bother me. I am used to working(work) hard. I’ve worked hard all my life.

3. Dick used to have(have) a mustache, but he doesn’t anymore. He shaved it off because his wife didn’t like it. I am not used to seeing(see, not) him without his mustache. He still looks strange to me.

4. When I was a child, I used to think(think) anyone over 40 was old. Of course, now that I’m middle-aged, I agree with those who say, “Life begins at 40.”
5. Even though Jason is only 12, he is used to flying(fly) on airplanes. His father is a pilot and has taken Jason with him in a plane many times.

Practice (Be Used To or Used To or Would)

1. I used to be(be) very shy. Whenever a stranger came to our house, I would hide(hide) in a closet.

2. I used to be(be) afraid of flying. My heart would start(start) pounding every time I stepped on a plane. But now I am used to flying(fly) and enjoy it.

3. I used to have(have) a bicycle. My friends would ask(ask) to ride it, but for years I would never let(let, never) anyone else use it.

Preference

1. I would rather go to a movie tonight than study grammar.

2. I’d rather study history than (study) biology.

3. How much do you weigh? I’d rather not tell you.

4. The movie was okay, but I would rather have gone to the concert last night.

5. I’d rather be lying on a beach in Florida than (be) sitting in class right now.
Practice

1. I went to an opera last night. I would rather have gone(go) to a movie.

2. I wrecked my father’s car. I’d rather not face(face) him, but I have to.

3. I’d rather be reading(read) a novel than (be) studying(study) grammar right now.

4. I would rather go(go) bowling than play(play) tennis this afternoon.

Using Can and Be Able To

1. Tom is strong. He can lift that heavy box.

2. I can play the piano. I’ve taken lessons for many years.

3. You can see fish at an aquarium.

4. That race car can go very fast.

5. Dogs can bark, but they cannot/can’t talk.

6. I’m not quite ready to go, but you can leave if you’re in a hurry. I’ll meet you later. (informal)

7. When you finish the test, you may leave. (formal)

8. Ann will/may/should/used to be able to lift that box.

Past Ability

1. When I was younger, I could run fast.
(Probable meaning: I used to be able to run fast, but now I can’t run fast.)

2. Tom has started an exercise program. He was able to run two miles yesterday without stopping or slowing down.

3. Did you read the news about the mountain climbers?
They were able to reach the top yesterday.
They managed to reach the top yesterday.
They reached the top yesterday.

4. Tom couldn’t run/wasn’t able to run five miles yesterday.
They couldn’t reach/weren’t able to reach the top yesterday.

Practice (Could or Be Able To)

1. I could swim(swim) long distances when I was a teenager.

2. The teacher gave the students plenty of time for the test yesterday. All of them were able to complete (complete) it before the time was up.

3. After years of devoted work, Mr. Brown finally was able to get(get) a raise in salary last April.

4. I like to ride my bicycle. I could ride(ride) it to work when we lived on First Street, but now I can’t. Now I have to drive because we live too far away.

Subject-Verb Agreement

Irregular Plural Nouns

	baby(babies  enemy(enemies  hobby(hobbies

	man(men  child(children  ox(oxen  mouse(mice

louse-lice  foot(feet  goose(geese  tooth(teeth

	heroes  potatoes  tomatoes

	photos  pianos  radios  videos  zoos

	mosquitoes/mosquitos  tornadoes/tornados

volcanoes/volcanos  zeroes/zeros

	half(halves  knife(knives  leaf(leaves  life(lives

shelf(shelves  thief(thieves  wolf(wolves

	beliefs  chiefs  cliffs  roofs

	deer  fish  means  series  sheep  species

	phenomenon(phenomena  criterion(criteria

	stimulus(stimuli

	formula(formulae/formulas

	analysis(analyses  crisis(crises  oasis(oases

	bacterium(bacteria  curriculum(curricula

datum(data  medium(media


Uncountable Nouns
	baggage  clothing  equipment  furniture  garbage

jewelry  junk  machinery  mail  makeup  traffic

money  cash  change  postage  scenery

	water  coffee  tea  milk  oil  soup  blood

	ice  bread  butter  cheese  meat  gold  iron

silver  paper  cotton  wool

	steam  air  oxygen  smoke  smog  pollution

	rice  corn  dust  flour  grass  hair  pepper

salt  sand  sugar  wheat  barley

	beauty  confidence  courage  enjoyment  fun

honesty  knowledge  laughter  luck  wealth

	advice  information  news  evidence  proof

	grammar  slang  vocabulary

	Chinese  history  literature  mathematics

	baseball  soccer  tennis  chess  poker

	driving  swimming  traveling  walking

	weather  dew  fog  hail  heat  humidity  rain

thunder  wind  darkness  light  fire  electricity


Basic Agreement

1. My friend lives in Boston.

2. The ideas in that book are interesting.

3. My brother and sister live in New York.

4. Every man, woman, and child needs love.

5. Growing flowers is her hobby.

6. To do some exercise is important for our health.

7. What she said was quite right.

8. How to help her bothers me.

Practice
1. The subjects you will be studying in this course are(be) listed in the syllabus.

2. The professor and the student agree(agree) on that point.

3. Each girl and boy in the sixth-grade class has(have) to do a science project.

4. Making pies and cakes is(be) Helen’s specialty.

5. How to prevent diseases is(be) worth studying.

6. When he was born is(be) nothing to do with the case.

Using Expressions of Quantity

1. Some of the book is good.
Some of the books are good.

2. A lot of the equipment is new.
A lot of my friends are here.

3. One of/Each of/Every one of my friends is here.

4. None of the boys are here.

5. The number of students in the class is forty.

6. A number of students were late for class.

Practice

1. Some of the apples in that bowl are(be) rotten.

2. Half of this money belongs(belong) to you.

3. A lot of clothing in those stores is(be) on sale.

4. Each of the boys in the class has(have) his own notebook.

5. Every one of the students is(be) required to take the final test.

6. None of the animals at the zoo are(be) free. All of them are(be) in enclosures.

7. A number of students are(be) absent today.

8. One of the chief materials in bones is(be) calcium.

9. Does(do) all of this homework have to be finished by tomorrow?

10. What percentage of the people in the world are(be) illiterate?

Collective Nouns (It or They)

1. I have a wonderful family. They have(have) always helped me.

2. I look up some information about the average American family. I found out that it consists (consist) of 2.3 children.

3. The audience clapped enthusiastically. Obviously they had enjoyed the concert.

4. The audience filled the room to overflowing. It was(be) larger than I had expected.

5. The crowd became more and more excited. They began to shout and wave flags in the air.

6. The crowd at the soccer game was(be) over ten thousand people.

7. The office staff gave their boss a gold watch when she retired.

8. The office staff is(be) composed of three people.

9. The class is too small. It is(be) going to be cancelled.

10. The class is planning a party. They are(be) going to bring many different kinds of food.

11. The committee is(be) held twice a month.

12. The committee have(have) different opinions about the proposal.

Unit
1. One hundred dollars is(be) too much to pay for that box lunch.

2. Millions of dollars are(be) spent on the project.

3. Twenty days seems(seem) a long time to wait.

4. Three years have(have) passed since he graduated.

5. A hundred miles is(be) a short distance.

Compound Subject

1. Early to bed and early to rise makes(make) a man healthy.

2. The long and short of it is(be) that he is correct.

3. Bread and butter was(be) all she asked for.

4. Bread and butter are(be) the necessities of life.

5. All work and no play makes(make) Jack a dull boy.

6. Slow and steady wins(win) the race.

7. A poet and novelist is(be) visiting our school now.

8. One or more persons are(be) needed to do the job.

9. Either you or he is(be) correct.

10. Neither you nor I am(be) wrong.

11. Not only you but also he is(be) to blame.

12. Mary with her sisters is(be) playing volleyball.

13. Jim as well as you knows(know) how to catch a sparrow.

14. Nobody but Tom and Mary is(be) absent today.

Irregularities

1. The United States has(have) a population of around 250 million.

2. The news about Mr. Hogan is(be) surprising.

3. Physics seeks(seek) to understand the mysteries of the physical world.

4. The police are(be) prepared in case there is a riot.

5. The poor are(be) helped by government programs.

Practice (Simple Present)

1. There are(be) a lot of sheep in the field.

2. One of my friends keeps(keep) a goldfish bowl on her kitchen table.

3. Sensitivity to other people’s feelings makes(make) him a kind and understanding person.

4. Each penny, nickel, dime, and quarter was(be) counted carefully by the bank teller.

5. Do(do) most of the students live in the dormitories?

6. An orange and black bird is(be) sitting in that tree.

7. Almost two-thirds of the land in the north areas of the country is(be) unsuitable for farming.

8. The economic and cultural center of the United States is(be) New York City.

9. Two hours of jogging provides(provide) plenty of exercise.

10. A car with poor brakes and no brake lights is(be) dangerous.

11. A number of people from the company plan(plan) to attend the conference.

12. No news is(be) good news.

13. The number of schools in this village is(be) zero.

14. Almost all the information in those reports appears (appear) to be well researched.

15. Every day there are(be) more than a dozen traffic accidents in the city.

16. The class is(be) too large to be taught by a single man.

17. The mother as well as the children is(be) watching TV.

18. Fifty minutes is(be) the maximum length of time allowed for the exam.

19. Twenty dollars is(be) an unreasonable price for the necklace.

20. Refusing invitations is(be) not always easy.

  Infinitives & Gerunds

Verbs Followed by Infinitives

V + to V

	afford    agree   appear  arrange    ask       beg       care
	claim  consent  decide  demand  deserve  expect     fail
	hesitate   hope     learn   manage  mean     need     offer
	plan   prepare  pretend  promise  refuse    seem  struggle
	swear  threaten  volunteer  wait     want     wish


V + O + to V

	advise   allow      ask       beg     cause  challenge
	convince  dare  encourage  expect     forbid
	force      hire    instruct  invite    need
	order   permit  persuade  remind  require
	teach      tell       urge      want     warn


Verbs Followed by Gerunds

V + V-ing

	admit    advise  anticipate  appreciate  avoid  complete
	consider  delay   deny  discuss  dislike  enjoy
	finish    keep  mention  mind    miss postpone
	practice      quit        recall     recollect  recommend  regret
	resist      risk    suggest  tolerate   can’t help


Practice

1. Jack discussed opening(open) our own business.

2. The teacher reminded the students to do(do) their assignments.

3. I was broke, so Jenny offered to lend(lend) me some money.

4. He told a really funny joke. We couldn’t stop laughing(laugh).

5. Tony mentioned taking(take) the bus to school instead of walking.

6. My boss expects me to finish(finish) this work ASAP.

7. I wanted to go to Japan. Sally suggested going(go) to Hawaii.

8. You have to decide how to do it. You can’t postpone making(make) that decision much longer.

9. Lucy pretended to know(know) the answer to my question.

10. Jack advised me to find(find) a new apartment.

11. Joan and David were considering getting(get) married in June, but they finally decided to wait(wait) until August.

12. Even though I asked the people in front of me at the movie to be(be) quiet, they kept talking(talk).

13. I don’t mind waiting(wait) for you. Go ahead and finish doing(do) your work.

14. The taxi driver refused to take(take) a check. He wanted the passenger to pay(pay) in cash.

15. Sometimes students avoid looking(look) at the teacher if they don’t want to answer(answer) a question.

Verbs Followed by Infinitives/Gerunds

V + to V/V-ing (same meaning)

	begin  start  continue  like  love  prefer  hate  can’t stand/bear

	I prefer staying home to going to the concert.

I prefer to stay home than (to) go to the concert.


Verbs Followed by Infinitives/Gerunds

V + toV/ V-ing (different meanings)

	Judy always remembers to lock the door.

I remember seeing the Alps for the first time.

	Sam often forgets to lock the door.

I’ll never forget seeing the Alps for the first time.

	I regret to tell you that you failed the test.

I regret lending him some money. He never paid me back.

	I’m trying to study hard.

The room was hot. I tried opening the window, but that didn’t help. So I tried turning on the fan, but I was still hot. Finally, I turned on the air conditioner.

	She stopped to take a rest when she got tired.

She stopped going to classes when she got sick.


Practice
1. The play wasn’t very good. The audience started to leave/leaving(leave) before it was over.

2. The children love to swim/swimming(swim) in the ocean.

3. When I travel, I prefer driving(drive) to taking(take) a plane.

4. I prefer to drive(drive) than (to) take(take) a plane.

5. I always remember to turn(turn) off all the lights before I leave my house.

6. I remember playing(play) with dolls when I was a child.

7. What did you forget to do(do) before you left for class this morning.

8. I can’t ever forget watching(watch) our team score the winning goal in the last seconds of the game.

9. I regret to inform(inform) you that your loan application has not been approved.

10. I regret not listening(listen, not) to my father’s advice. He was right.

11. When a student asks a question, the teacher always tries to explain(explain) it as clearly as possible.

12. I tried everything, but the baby still wouldn’t stop crying(cry). I tried holding(hold) him. I tried feeding(feed) him. I tried changing(change) his diapers. Nothing worked.

13. My grandfather prefers to read/reading(read).

14. I forgot to take(take) a book back to the library, so I had to pay a fine.

15. After studying for three hours, I stopped to get (get) something to eat.

Adjectives Followed by Infinitives

be adj + to V

	glad  happy pleased  delight  content relieved lucky fortunate
	sorry    sad     upset  disappointed 

proud  ashamed ready  prepared
	anxious  eager willing  motivated determined careful hesitant reluctant
	afraid surprised  amazed astonished shocked stunned


Practice

1. I was relieved to find(find) out that I had passed the exam.

2. The soldier were prepared to fight(fight).

3. The children are anxious to go(go) to the circus.

4. The teacher is always willing to help(help) us.

5. Be careful not to slip(slip, not) on the icy sidewalks.

6. Tom was hesitant to walk(walk) home alone on the dark streets.

7. We were sorry to hear(hear) the bad news.

8. At first, the bank was reluctant to lend(lend) me the money.
9. Visitors are often amazed to discover(discover) how little the town has changed.
10. The students are motivated to study(study) English.

Using Infinitive with Too & Enough
1. A child is too young to read(read) a long novel, but an adult is old enough to appreciate(appreciate) good literature.

2. She is too weak to lift(lift) the heavy box, but her husband is strong enough to lift(lift) it.

3. It’s too hot for us to play(play) outdoors, but it’s hot enough for us to go(go) swimming.

4. I was too tired to walk any farther.

 =I was so tired that I couldn’t walk any farther.

5. She is so young as to look like a child.

 =She is so young that she looks like a child.

Past & Passive Forms

1. I didn’t expect to be invited to his party.
I appreciated being invited to your home.

2. The rain seems to have stopped at six.
I appreciate having had the opportunity to meet the king in 1985.

3. Jane is fortunate to have been given a scholarship last year.
I appreciate having been told the news yesterday.

Practice

1. It is easy to be fooled(fool) by his lies.

2. I don’t enjoy being laughed(laugh) at by others.

3. Tim was in the army during the war. He was caught by the enemy but he managed to escape(escape). He is lucky to have escaped(escape) with his life.

4. I’m glad that my company sent me to another country to study. I’m very pleased to have been given(give) the opportunity to learn about another culture.

5. Last year I studied abroad. I appreciate having had(had) the opportunity to live and study in a foreign country.

6. Ms. Walters complained about not having been told(tell, not) about the meeting. In the future, she expects to be informed(inform) of any and all meetings.

7. A: I thought Sam was sick.

  B: So did I. But he seems to have recovered(recover) very quickly. He certainly doesn’t seem to be(be) sick now.

Using Need

1. I need to borrow some money.

2. John needs to be told the truth.

3. The house needs painting/to be painted.

Using Verbs of Perception
	see  notice
	watch look at
	observe feel
	hear listen to
	smell

	I heard a famous star sing at the concert last night.

When I walked into the apartment, I heard my roommate singing in the shower.

	The cat watched the bird fly away.

(The bird disappeared)

The cat hungrily watched the bird flying above its head. (The bird continued to fly hear the cat.)


Using Let & Help
1. My father let me drive his car.

2. I let my friend borrow my bicycle.

3. My brother helped me wash/to wash my car.

Using Causative Verbs

1. Mrs. Lee made her son clean his room.
Sad movies make me cry.

2. I had the plumber repair the leak.
I had my watch repaired.

3. The students got the teacher to dismiss class early.
I got my bicycle fixed.

Practice

1. The chair is broken. I need to fix(fix) it. The chair needs fixing/to be fixed(fix).

2. When I walked past the park, I saw some children playing(play) in the park.

3. I remember it distinctly. At five yesterday afternoon, I saw Jim walk(walk) to his car, open (open) the door, and get(get) in.

4. Do you see Mary walking(walk) up the street? Isn’t that her, the woman in the red dress?

5. Mrs. Crane had her house painted(paint).

6. Don got some kids in the neighborhood to clean (clean) out his garbage.

7. Mr. Brown made her son wash(wash) the windows.

8. I went to the bank to have a check cashed(cash).

9. I spilled some tomato sauce on my coat. Now I need to get my coat cleaned(clean).

10. Do you smell something burning(burn)?

11. When I heard the principal of the school call(call) my name at the graduation ceremony, I walked to the front of the auditorium to receive my diploma.

12. Do you hear someone calling(call) for help in the distance? I do.

Special Expressions + V

1. I cannot but think(think) so.

 =I cannot choose/help but think(think) so.

=I cannot help thinking(think) so.

2. Helen did nothing but/except study(study) all day long.

3. All you have to do is take(take) a rest.
What we can do now is wait(wait).

Go + V-ing
	go boating       go bowling       go camping      go canoeing      go dancing       go fishing
	go hiking         go jogging        go running        go sailing        go skating        go skiing
	go shopping                  go swimming                 go sightseeing                 go birdwatching               go mountain climbing          go window shopping


Special Expressions + V-ing

1. We had a lot of fun playing(play) games at the picnic.

2. We had a good time swimming(swim) in the ocean.

3. I have trouble/difficulty understanding(understand) Helen when she speaks. She talks too fast.

4. Ted is an indecisive person. He has a hard/difficult time making(make) up his mind about anything.

5. Heather is a commuter. Every work day, she spends almost three hours going(go) to and from work.

6. We wasted our money going(go) to that movie. It was very boring.

7. Michael is sitting in class taking(take) notes.

8. Martha is standing at the corner waiting(wait) for the bus.

9. It was a beautiful spring day. Dorothy was lying under a tree listening(listen) to the birds sing.

10. I wondered what the children were doing while I was gone. When I got home, I found them watching(watch) TV.

11. When Mr. Brown walked into the kitchen, he caught the children eating(eat) some candy.

12. All the students are busy preparing(prepare) for the coming entrance exam.

13. There is no telling(tell) what may happen.

14. What do you say to playing(play) volleyball?

15. It’s no use crying(cry) over spilt milk.

16. This museum is worth visiting(visit).

17. This museum is worthy of being visited(visit).

Participles

Present vs. Past Participles

1. boiling/boiled water

2. falling/fallen leaves

3. a drowning/drowned man

4. a criticizing/criticized speech

5. a sinking/sunken ship

Compound Adjectives
	N-Ving

a heart-breaking story

a record-breaking team

English-speaking people

eye-catching rings
	N-Ven

a heart-broken man

a coin-operated machine

hand-made shoes

thunder-stricken people

	Adj-Ving

a good-looking man

an easy-going person

sweet-smelling roses

strange-sounding stories
	Adj-Ven

a ready-made dress

a poor-born child

green-painted houses



	Adv-Ving

a hard-working student

an out-going girl

well-meaning advice

best-selling novels
	Adv-Ven

a privately-owned garden

a well-educated man

widely-used dictionaries

well-behaved students

	Adj-Ned

a broken-hearted man

a gray-haired teacher

a three-legged table

a five-roomed house
	hot-tempered boys

four-footed animals

open-minded people

high-priced goods


Practice
1. We are warned not to eat food which contains cancer-causing(cause) substances.

2. Those snow-covered(cover) mountains are so beautiful.

3. Students in our school are all healthy-looking(look) girls.

4. My uncle lives in that red-painted(paint) house.

5. Tornados are fast-moving(move) whirlwind.

6. That the earth is round is a generally-accepted (accept) fact.

7. You should get rid of those old-fashioned(fashion) ideas.

Participial Construction

Conj S + V…, S…( V-ing…, S…
1. After he arrived at the station, he found the train had left.

(Arriving at the station, he found the train had left.

2. As she was a stranger in the city, she didn’t know where to go.

(Being a stranger in the city, she didn’t know where to go.

3. Because I didn’t know what to do, I was at a loss.

(Not knowing what to do, I was at a loss.

4. Because he had finished his homework, he went out to play.

(Having finished his homework, he went out to play.

5. Though he is short and ugly, he is kind-hearted.

(Though (being) short and ugly, he is kind-hearted.

6. While he was walking down the street, he met an old friend.

(While walking down the street, he met an old friend.

Conj S + be V-en…, S… ( V-en…, S…
1. Because the letter was written in haste, it contains many mistakes.

(Written in haste, the letter contains many mistakes.

2. As he has been praised too much, he becomes too proud.

((Having been) Praised too much, he becomes too proud.

3. When she was asked the question, she felt embarrassed.

(When asked the question, she felt embarrassed.

Conj S1 + V…, S2…( S1 + V-ing…, S2…
1. When she saw a handsome boy, her heart began to beat faster.

(She seeing a handsome boy, her heart began to beat faster.

2. Because it was a holiday, he didn’t go to school.

(It being a holiday, he didn’t go to school.

3. If weather permits, we will go on a picnic.

(Weather permitting, we will go on a picnic.

Conj S1 + be V-en…, S2…( S1 + V-en…, S2…
1. As the ground was covered with snow, we could only go on foot.

(The ground covered with snow, we could only go on foot.

2. After his homework had been finished, he went out to play.

(His homework (having been) finished, he went out to play.

S + V1… and (S) V2…( S + V1…, V2-ing…
1. She stayed at home and cleaned the rooms.

(She stayed at home, cleaning the rooms.

2. She stood amazed and she didn’t know what to do.

(She stood amazed, not knowing what to do.

S1 + V1… and S2 + V2…( S1 + V1…, S2 +V2-ing…
1. He stayed at home, and his wife went shopping.

(He stayed at home, his wife going shopping.

2. She fainted and we didn’t know what to do.

(She fainted, we not knowing what to do.

Practice

1. Discovering(Discover) a dead body in the dark alley, I called the police at once.

2. Having done(Do) all the work, they closed the shop.

3. He was quite puzzled, not knowing(know, not) what to do.

4. Brought(Bring) up in America, she speaks fluent English.

5. Defeated(Defeat) by the enemy, the army ran away.

Relative Pronouns

Subject

1. I thanked the woman who/that helped me.

2. The book which/that is on the table is mine.

Object
1. The man who(m)/that/Ø I saw was Mr. Jones.

2. The movie which/that/Ø we saw last wasn’t good.

3. She is the woman who(m)/that/Ø I told you about.
She is the woman about whom I told you.

4. The music which/that/Ø we listened to was good.
The music to which we listened was good.

Using Whose

1. I know the man whose bicycle was stolen.

2. She has a painting whose value is inestimable.

Practice (Who / Whom / Which / Whose)

1. She is the woman who sits next to me in class.

2. The hat which Tom is wearing is unusual.

3. The person to whom Ann spoke could not answer her question.

4. I read about a child whose life was saved by her pet dog.

5. I enjoyed talking with the man who/whom I sat next to on the plane.

6. Alex bought a bicycle which is specially designed for long-distance racing.

7. I live in a dormitory whose residents come from many countries.

8. The topic about which we talked was interesting.

Using What & -ever

1. This is what I need.

 =This is the thing which I need.

2. He always says whatever comes into his mind.

 =He always says anything that comes into his mind.

3. Whoever wants to come is welcome.

 =Anyone who wants to come is welcome.

4. He makes friends easily with who(m)ever he meets.

 =He makes friends easily with anyone who(m) he meets.

5. Return the dictionary to whosever name is on it.

 =Return the dictionary to anyone whose name is on it.

6. There are four good programs on TV at 8 o’clock.
You can watch whichever program/one you prefer.

 =You can watch any of the four programs that you prefer.

7. You may leave whenever you wish.

 =You may leave at any time that you wish.

8. She can go wherever she wants to go.

 =She can go anyplace that she wants to go.

9. The students may dress however they please.

 =The students may dress in any way that they please.

Using As & But & Than

1. He is as brave a soldier as ever lived.

2. Don’t read such books as are not worth reading.

3. This is the same watch as I lost.

4. There is no one but makes mistakes.

 =There is no one that doesn’t make mistakes.

5. Don’t give children more money than is needed.

Using Where & When & Why

1. The building where he lives is very old.

=The building in which he lives is very old.

2. I’ll never forget the day when I met you.

=I’ll never forget the day on which I met you.

3. This is the reason why I don’t help him.

 =This is the reason for which I don’t help him.

Practice

1. Spring is the season when flowers are in bloom.

2. The town where I grew up is small.

3. Heavy traffic was the reason why they were late.

4. He gave me more money than was required.

5. Everyone had a good time. There was not a person but laughed heartily.

6. I have bought the same bicycle as you have.

7. There is no rules but has exceptions.

8. I’ll provide you with such things as you may need.

9. Whoever leads a life full of love and happiness is rich.

10. What he said was interesting.

11. I want you to be honest. I hope you feel free to say whatever is on your mind.

12. If you want to rearrange the furniture, go ahead. You can rearrange it however you want. I don’t care one way or the other.

13. I have a car. I can take you wherever you want to go.

14. I have four. Take whichever one pleases you most.

15. He is free to go anytime he wishes. He can go whenever he wants.

16. Marie does whatever she wants to do, goes wherever she wants to go, gets up whenever she wants to gets up, makes friends with who(m)ever she meets, and dresses however she pleases.

Restrictive & Nonrestrictive
1. The professor who/that teaches Chemistry 101 is an excellent teacher.
Professor Wilson, who teaches Chemistry 101, is an excellent teacher.

2. The man who/that I met yesterday teaches chemistry.
Mr. Smith, who I met yesterday, teaches chemistry.

3. Hawaii, which consists of eight principal islands, is a favorite vacation spot.
4. We took some children on a picnic. The children, who wanted to play soccer, ran to an open field as soon as we arrived at the park.
We took some children on a picnic. The children who wanted to play soccer ran to an open field as soon as we arrived at the park. The others played a different game.

Practice (add Commas if necessary)

1. Alan, who did not come to class yesterday, explained his absence to the teacher.

2. The student who did not come to class yesterday explained his absence to the teacher.

3. Only people who speak Russian should apply for the job.

4. Matthew, who speaks Russian, applied for the job.

5. I have fond memories of my hometown, which is situated in a valley.

6. I live in a town which is situated in a valley.

7. A river which is polluted is not safe for swimming.

8. The Mississippi River, which flows south from Minnesota to the Gulf of Mexico, is the major commercial river in the United States.

9. The rice which we had for dinner last night was very good.

10. Rice, which is grown in many countries, is a staple food throughout much of the world.

Using Expression of Quantity
1. In my class there are 20 students, most of whom are from the Far East.

2. I am taking five courses, all of which are required.

3. The teachers discussed Jim, one of whose problems was poor study habits.

Using Which to modify a whole sentence

1. Tom was late, which surprised me.

2. The elevator is out of order, which is too bad.

Practice

1. The city has sixteen schools, two of which are colleges.

2. That company has five employees, all of whom are computer experts.

3. Max isn’t home yet, which worries me.

4. Jack is interested in many things, one of whose interests is collecting stamps.

5. Mrs. Anderson responded to my letter right away, which I appreciated very much.

Reduction

1. The girl (who is) sitting next to me is Mary.

2. The ideas (which are) presented in that book are interesting.

3. The books (that are) on that shelf are mine.

4. Al is the man (who is) responsible for the mistake.

5. English has an alphabet that consists of 26 letters.

(English has an alphabet consisting of 26 letters.

6. Anyone who wants to come with us is welcome.

(Anyone wanting to come with us is welcome.

Practice
1. The people waiting(wait) for the bus in the rain are getting wet.

2. I come from a city located(locate) in the southern part of the country.

3. The children attending(attend) that school receive a good education.

4. They live in a house built(build) in 1890.

5. The house surrounded(surround)by the fence is made of wood.

6. The fence surrounding(surround) our house is made of wood.
Conjunctions

	Coordinate Conjunctions

	and

but

or

so

for
	both…and…
not only…but (also)

either…or…
neither…nor…
as well as


1. Steve and his friend are coming to dinner.

2. These shoes are old but comfortable.

3. In my spare time, I enjoy reading novels or watching TV.

4. It is very late, so we had better go to bed.

5. It must have rained during the night, for the ground is wet.

6. Both my mother and my sister are(be) here.

7. Not only the teacher but also the student is(be) here.

8. Either the teacher or the students are(be) planning to come.

9. Neither the students nor the teacher is(be) here.

10. The teacher as well as the students is(be) planning to come.

	Transitions (Conjunctive Adverbs)

	besides  moreover furthermore    in addition    also      likewise   similarly   indeed      again
	only                still             (and/but) yet               however      nevertheless    nonetheless            on the other hand       on the contrary    otherwise
	therefore                 thus              consequently                as a result          accordingly              hence                 namely                   that is (to say)              for example/instance


1. It’s too late to go for a walk; besides, it’s beginning to rain.

2. The engineer says that the plan is not practical. Moreover/Furthermore, he has other objections.

3. You need money and time. In addition, you need diligence. (additionally)

4. I prepared my math lesson; also, I wrote my English composition.

5. The cost of food has come down in recent years. Likewise/Similarly, fuel prices have fallen.
6. He didn’t object to our proposal; indeed, he gave several reasons for supporting it.

7. The car was almost new; again, it was in excellent condition.

8. He promises; only he does not keep his word.

9. He failed again; still he didn’t lose his hope.

10. He is always polite to me, (and) yet I don’t like him.

11. It was cold. However/Nevertheless/Nonetheless, I still went swimming.

12. I’d like to eat out; on the other hand, I should be trying to save money.
13. He is not a stupid boy; on the contrary, he is quite intelligent.

14. You’d better hurry. Otherwise, you’ll be late.

15. Al didn’t study; therefore/thus/consequently/as a result, he failed the test. (in consequence)

16. There aren’t many jobs available. Accordingly, companies receive hundreds of resumes for every opening.
17. The cost of transport is a major expense for an industry. Hence, factory location is an important consideration.
18. Three students were mentioned; namely, John, Dick and Tom.
19. Susan is a good student; that is (to say), she gets good grades in school.

20. It’s extremely expensive to live in New York. For example/For instance, I pay $1250 for a one-bedroom apartment.
	Prepositions (Adverbial Prepositional Phrases)

	besides              in addition to      because of          due to                owing to          as a result of
	thanks to              with a view to          with an eye to           for the purpose of               despite                  in spite of
	regardless of    according to             in case of              in the event of      when it comes to  speaking of


1. Besides/In addition to going to aerobics twice a week, she rides horses on Saturdays.
2. Because of/Due to/Owing to the cold weather, we stayed home.

3. Many people are now homeless as a result of the civil war.
4. Thanks to your carelessness, the documents have been lost.
5. We bought the house with a view to/with an eye to/ for the purpose of retiring there.
6. Despite/In spite of the language difficulty, we soon became friends.
7. He does what he wants, regardless of what I say.
8. According to the police, Miller was arrested at the scene of the robbery.
9. In case of trouble, call the police.

10. In the event of rain, the picnic will be cancelled.

11. When it comes to/Speaking of computers, he’s a bit of an expert.
Subordinate Conjunctions (Adv Clauses)

	Time

	after             before             when           while/as             by the time
	since           until/till              as soon as          once              as/so long as
	whenever          every time           the first time         the last time          the next time

	no sooner…than     hardly…when/before  scarcely…when/before
	the moment/instant (that)       directly (when)           immediately (when)


1. After she graduates, she will get a job.

2. I (had) left before he came.

3. When I arrived, he was talking on the phone.

4. While/As I was walking home, it began to rain.

5. By the time he arrived, we had already left.

6. I haven’t seen him since he left this morning.

7. We stayed there until/till we finished our work.

8. As soon as/Once it stops raining, we will leave.

9. I will never speak to him again as/so long as I live.

10. Whenever/Every time I see her, I say hello.

11. The first time I went to New York, I went to an opera.

12. I saw two plays the last time I went to New York.

13. The next time I go to New York, I’m going to see a ballet.

14. No sooner had he sat down than the phone rang.
15. Hardly/Scarcely had he sat down when/before the phone rang.

16. Jen burst out laughing the moment/the instant she walked in.
17. Directly/Immediately I got your message, I came.
	Cause and Effect

	because            since
	now that             as
	insomuch as


1. Because he was sleepy, he went to bed.

2. Since he’s not interested in classical music, he decided not to go to the concert.

3. Now that the semester is finished, I’m going to rest a few days and then take a trip.

4. As she had nothing to do, she called up a friend and asked her if she wanted to take in a movie.

5. Inasmuch as the two government leaders could not reach an agreement, the possibilities for peace are still remote.

	Purpose
	Result

	in order that          so that
	for fear (that) lest…(should)
	such…that           so…that


1. She studies very hard in order that she may enter her ideal college.

2. Please turn down the radio so that I can get to sleep.

3. She finally ran away for fear (that) he would kill her.
4. She turned away from the window lest anyone (should) see her.
5. It was such nice weather that we went to the zoo.

6. She speaks so fast that I can’t understand her.

	Opposition

	even if             even though
	although         though
	whereas           while


1. Even if/though it was cold, I went swimming.

2. Although/Though she joined the company only a year ago, she’s already been promoted twice.
3. The old system was fairly complicated, whereas/ while the new system is really very simple.
	Condition

	if                unless            whether or not        on condition that
	only if        provided (that)   providing (that)  suppose (that)
	supposing (that)      as/so long as           in case (that)           in the event (that)


1. If it rains tomorrow, I will take my umbrella.

2. I’ll go swimming tomorrow unless it’s cold.

3. I’m going to go swimming tomorrow whether it is cold or not.

4. Ron lent me the money on condition (that) I paid it back within three weeks.
5. The picnic will be cancelled only if it rains.
Only if it rains will the picnic be cancelled.

6. Of course we’ll look after your kids provided/ providing (that) you can drop them off at our house.

7. Suppose/Supposing (that) you lost your job tomorrow, what would you do?
8. You’ll be quite safe as/so long as you follow my instructions.
9. I’ll be at my uncle’s house in case (that) you (should) need to reach me.

10. In the event (that) you (should) need to reach me, I’ll be at my uncle’s house.
